# Registration of a Charge

Company name: WHITBREAD RESTAURANTS LIMITED

Company number: 06190450

Received for Electronic Filing: 07/01/2019



# **Details of Charge**

Date of creation: 03/01/2019

Charge code: 0619 0450 0004

Persons entitled: WHITBREAD PENSION TRUSTEES (00629992)

Brief description:

Contains fixed charge(s).

Contains floating charge(s) (floating charge covers all the property or

undertaking of the company).

Contains negative pledge.

# Authentication of Form

This form was authorised by: a person with an interest in the registration of the charge.

# Authentication of Instrument

Certification statement: I CERTIFY THAT THE ELECTRONIC COPY INSTRUMENT

DELIVERED AS PART OF THIS APPLICATION FOR REGISTRATION

IS A CORRECT COPY OF THE ORIGINAL INSTRUMENT.

Certified by: JONATHAN FENN, SLAUGHTER AND MAY



# CERTIFICATE OF THE REGISTRATION OF A CHARGE

Company number: 6190450

Charge code: 0619 0450 0004

The Registrar of Companies for England and Wales hereby certifies that a charge dated 3rd January 2019 and created by WHITBREAD RESTAURANTS LIMITED was delivered pursuant to Chapter A1 Part 25 of the Companies Act 2006 on 7th January 2019.

Given at Companies House, Cardiff on 9th January 2019

The above information was communicated by electronic means and authenticated by the Registrar of Companies under section 1115 of the Companies Act 2006





## **EXECUTION VERSION**

Dated Soil January 2019

PREMIER INN HOTELS LIMITED

WHITBREAD GROUP PLC

**FARRINGDON SCOTTISH PARTNERSHIP** 

PREMIER INN LIMITED

WHITBREAD RESTAURANTS LIMITED

WHITBREAD GROUP PLC

and

WHITBREAD PENSION TRUSTEES as trustee of the Whitbread Group Pension Fund

**LEGAL CHARGE** 

Certified to be a true copy SLAUGHTER AND MAY ONE BUNHILL ROW ECTY 8YY JZF

## CONTENTS

		Page
1.	Interpretation	1
2.	Creation of Security	11
3.	Representations	12
4.	Covenants	14
5.	Default	19
6.	When Security becomes Enforceable	21
7.	Enforcement of Security	22
8.	Receiver	23
9.	Powers of Receiver	24
10.	Application of Proceeds	26
11.	Expenses and Indemnity	26
12.	Delegation	27
13.	Further Assurances	27
14.	Covenant to Pay	27
15.	Power of Attorney	27
16.	Preservation of Security	28
17.	Changes to the Parties	30
18.	Substitutions and Amendments	30
19.	Release – Where Over-secured	31
20.	Top-Up Security – Where Undersecured	32
21.	Release of all Security Assets	33
22.	Severability	34
23.	Counterparts	34

24.	Notices	34
25.	Language	36
26.	Governing Law	36
27.	Enforcement	36
Schedu	ile 1 Mortgaged Property	37
Schedu	lle 2 Forms of Letter for Occupational Tenants	42
Schedu	ıle 3 Property Criteria	44
Schedu	lle 4 Form of Substitution Request Notice	45
Schedu	lle 5 Form of Release Request Notice	47
Schedu	lle 6 Form of Top-Up Request Notice	49
Schedu	lle 7 Form of Supplemental Deed of Charge	50

.

#### BETWEEN:

- 1. PREMIER INN HOTELS LIMITED whose registered office is at Whitbread Court, Houghton Hall Business Park, Porz Avenue, Dunstable, Bedfordshire LU5 5XE (registered in England No. 5137608) ("PIHL"); WHITBREAD GROUP PLC whose registered office is at Whitbread Court, Houghton Hall Business Park, Porz Avenue, Dunstable, Bedfordshire LU5 5XE (registered in England No. 29423); FARRINGDON SCOTTISH PARTNERSHIP a Scottish partnership entered into in terms of the Partnership Act 1890 and whose principal place of business is 4 Floor, Saltire Court, 20 Castle Terrace, Edinburgh EH1 2EN (the "SP"); PREMIER INN LIMITED whose registered office is at Whitbread Court, Houghton Hall Business Park, Porz Avenue, Dunstable, Bedfordshire LU5 5XE (registered in England No. 6190411) ("PIL"); and, WHITBREAD RESTAURANTS LIMITED whose registered office is at Whitbread Court, Houghton Hall Business Park, Porz Avenue, Dunstable, Bedfordshire LU5 5XE (registered in England No. 6190450) ("WRL") (together with Group, the "Chargors");
- 2. **WHITBREAD GROUP PLC** whose registered office is at Whitbread Court, Houghton Hail Business Park, Porz Avenue, Dunstable, Bedfordshire LU5 5XE (registered in England No. 29423) ("**Group**"); and
- 3. **WHITBREAD PENSION TRUSTEES** whose registered office is at Whitbread Court, Houghton Hall Business Park, Porz Avenue, Dunstable, Bedfordshire LU5 5XE (registered in England No. 629992) as trustee of the Whitbread Group Pension Fund (the "**Trustee**").

#### WHEREAS:

- (A) Group is the Principal Employer under the Fund and Trustee is the sole trustee of the Fund.
- (B) Group has entered into the Deed of Covenant, the Funding Framework Deed and the Deed of Undertaking with the Trustee.
- (C) In February 2010, the Trustee acquired an interest in Moorgate Scottish Limited Partnership, which is a partner in Farringdon Scottish Partnership. The relationship between the parties in respect of these partnerships is governed by, *inter alia*, the PFP Transaction Documents.
- (D) The Chargors, Group and the Trustee have agreed to enter into this Deed in order to provide security for Group's obligations to the Fund, including, without limitation, (i) to make payments under the Deed of Covenant, the Funding Framework Deed and the Guarantee; and (ii) for payments due under the PFP Transaction Documents, in each case, on the terms set out in this Deed.

1

#### THIS DEED WITNESSES as follows:

- 1. INTERPRETATION
- 1.1 Definitions

In this Deed:

"2010 Legal Charge"

means the legal charge dated 25 February 2010 made between (1) Group, (2) the SP, PIL, PIHL and WRL and (3) the Trustee.

"2015 Legal Charge"

means the legal charge dated 22 May 2015 made between (1) PIHL and Group, (2) Group and (3) the Trustee.

"2020 Actuarial Valuation Date"

has the meaning given to it in the Deed of Covenant.

"Act"

means the Law of Property Act 1925.

"Business Day"

means a day (other than a Saturday or a Sunday) on which banks are open for general business in London.

"Chattels"

means:

- (a) all the plant and machinery and computer equipment of the Chargors present and future located at and used in connection with the Mortgaged Property and not regularly disposed of in the ordinary course of business; and
- (b) all furniture, furnishings, equipment, tools and other tangible moveable property of the Chargors present and future located at and used in connection with the Mortgaged Property and not regularly disposed of in the ordinary course of business,

but excludes any Dispense Equipment and Washroom Equipment.

"Certificates of Title"

means the certificates of title in respect of the relevant Mortgaged Property in the agreed form addressed to the Trustee provided in connection with either:

- (A) the 2010 Legal Charge; or
- (B) the 2015 Legal Charge.

"Deed of Covenant"

means the deed of covenant dated on or about the date of this Deed made between Whitbread (1) Group (2) and the Trustee (3) as the same may be amended, supplemented, varied, extended, restated and/or replaced from time to time.

"Deed of Undertaking"

means the deed of undertaking dated on or about the date of this Deed made between Group (1) and the Trustee (2).

"Dispense Equipment"

means all brewer or other third party supplied branded fonts.

"Event of Default"

means an event specified as such in Clause 5 (Default).

"Existing Valuation"

means the valuation prepared by the relevant Valuer addressed to the Trustee dated:

- (A) 25 September 2009 in respect of the PFP Mortgaged Property; and
- (B) 13 December 2012 in respect of the Non-PFP Mortgaged Property (with the exception of the site known as Dover East Premier Inn and registered at H.M. Land Registry with title number K646324).

"Fixtures"

means all fixtures and fittings and fixed plant and machinery on the Mortgaged Property.

"Fund"

means the Whitbread Group Pension Fund.

"Funding Framework Deed"

means the funding framework deed entered into between Whitbread, Group and the Trustee on around the date of this Deed as the same may be amended, supplemented, varied, extended, restated and/or replaced from time to time.

"Guarantee"

means the amended and restated guarantee and indemnity dated on or around the date of this Deed in respect of a guarantee and indemnity originally dated 17 October 2011 and entered into between, among others, the Fund, Group and Whitbread.

"Insured Property Assets"

means the Premises and all the Chargors' other substantial assets of an insurable nature in the Premises.

"Limited Partnership Agreement"

means the amended and restated limited partnership agreement dated 27 July 2010 made between Milton (SC) Limited (1) Milton 1 Limited (2) the Trustee (3) Whitbread (4) Group (5) and Moorgate Scottish Limited Partnership (6), as amended, varied or restated from time to time (other than any amendment, variation or restatement made following completion of the Option Agreement).

"Leases"

means the leases between the Chargors and the occupational tenants of the Mortgaged Property.

"Market Value"

means the estimated amount for which an asset or liability should exchange on the valuation date between a willing buyer and a willing seller in an arm's length transaction after proper marketing and where the parties had each acted knowledgeably, prudently and without compulsion and on the same basis as the "Valuation" as defined in the Deed of Undertaking or on such other basis as the parties agree (acting reasonably).

## "Material Adverse Effect"

means a material adverse effect on the ability of the Chargors and Group, taken as a whole, to perform their obligations under this Deed, the Deed of Covenant, the Funding Framework Deed or the Guarantee.

#### "Mortgaged Property"

means all property described in Part A and Part B of Schedule 1, any Substitution Property and any Top Up Property every part of such property including:

- (a) all buildings and Fixtures on that property; and
- (b) the benefit of any covenants for title given or entered into by any predecessor in title of the Chargors in respect of that property or any moneys paid or payable in respect of those covenants.

## "Non-PFP Mortgaged Property"

means the property listed in Part A of Schedule 1.

#### "Option Agreement"

means the option agreement originally dated 25 February 2010 between Group (1) the Trustee (2) Milton (SC) Limited (3) Whitbread (4) and Milton 1 Limited (5) and as amended, varied or restated from time to time.

## "Partnership Agreement"

means the amended and restated partnership agreement dated 27 July 2010 made between Moorgate Scottish Limited Partnership (1) Milton (SC) 2 Limited (2) and Farringdon Scottish Partnership (3) Whitbread (4) and Group (5), as amended, varied or restated from time to time (other than any amendment, variation or restatement made following completion of the Option Agreement).

"Party"

means a party to this Deed.

"PFP Mortgaged Property"

means the property listed in Part B of Schedule 1.

"PFP Tax Deed"

means the tax deed dated 25 February 2010 between Group (1) Whitbread (2) and the Trustee (3) and as amended, varied or restated from time to time

"PFP Termination Event"

means either (a) no obligations as to the payment of money remain outstanding under the PFP Transaction Documents, (b) the PFP Transactions Documents have been terminated or (c) the PFP Mortgaged Property (and any related Security Assets) are, in accordance with the terms of the PFP Transaction Documents, definitively agreed to be released from this Security.

"PFP Transaction Documents"

means the Limited Partnership Agreement, the Partnership Agreement, the Option Agreement, the PFP Tax Deed and the Assignation Agreement (as defined in the Option Agreement).

"Premises"

means all buildings and erections situated on the Mortgaged Property.

"Property Criteria"

means those criteria listed in Schedule 3.

"Property Reports"

means the Certificates of Title and the Property Title Summaries.

"Property Title Summaries" means the title summaries in respect of the relevant Mortgaged Property in the agreed form addressed to the Trustee provided in connection with either:

(A) the 2010 Legal Charge; or

(B) the 2015 Legal Charge.

"Qualifying Property"

means freehold or leasehold property which satisfy the Property Criteria.

"Receiver"

means an administrative receiver, receiver and manager or a receiver, in each case, appointed under this Deed.

"Release"

has the meaning given to it in Clause 19 (*Release – Where Over-secured*).

"Release Date"

has the meaning given to it in Clause 19 (*Release – Where Over-secured*).

"Release Property"

has the meaning given to it in Clause 19 (Release – Where Over-secured).

"Release Request Notice"

means a notice substantially in the form set out in Schedule 5.

"Release Valuation"

has the meaning given to it in Clause 19 (Release – Where Over-secured).

"Release Valuation Date"

means the date falling not more than one month prior to the Release Date.

## "Required Secured Amount"

means:

- (a) for so long as Secured Liabilities remain outstanding under the Deed of Covenant, for the period:
  - (i) from the date of this Deed to (but excluding) the 2020 Actuarial Valuation Date, £450 million;
  - (ii) on and from the 2020 Actuarial Valuation Date, £408 million;
- (b) in the event that no Secured Liabilities remain outstanding under the Deed of Covenant, £228 million (or such lower amount as may be agreed between the Chargors, Group and the Trustee) until the occurrence of a PFP Termination Event.

#### "Reservations"

#### means:

- (a) the principle that equitable remedies are remedies which may be granted or refused at the discretion of the court and damages may be regarded as an adequate remedy;
- (b) the limitation on enforcement as a result of laws relating to bankruptcy, insolvency, liquidation, reorganisation, court schemes, moratoria, administration and other laws affecting the rights of creditors generally;
- (c) the statutory time-barring of claims;
- (d) defences of set off or counterclaim;

- (e) rules against penalties and similar principles;
- (f) the fact that security which is described as fixed security may in fact be floating security;
- (g) the possibility that an undertaking to assume liability for, or indemnify a person against, non-payment of stamp duty may be void;
- (h) the fact that a court may refuse to give effect to a purported contractual obligation to pay costs imposed upon another person in respect of costs of an unsuccessful litigation brought against that person or may not award by way of costs all of the expenditure incurred by a successful litigant in proceedings brought before that court or that a court may stay proceedings if concurrent proceedings based on the same grounds and between the same parties have previously been brought before another court;
- (i) steps for perfection not required by the terms of this Deed to be taken.

#### "Secured Excess"

means the amount by which the value of the Security Assets (after any release made under Clauses 19 or 20) exceeds the Required Secured Amount.

#### "Secured Liabilities"

means all present and future obligations and liabilities (whether actual or contingent and whether owed jointly or severally and in any capacity whatsoever) of:

- (a) Group, Whitbread, PIL, PIHL and WRL to make payments to the Fund; or
- (b) Group or Whitbread to make payments to the Trustee or to any Successor Trustee or Trustee Related Transferee under the PFP Transaction Documents,

when aggregated, up to a maximum amount of the Required Secured Amount.

## "Security Assets"

means all assets of the Chargors which are the subject of any security created by this Deed.

#### "Security Deficit"

has the meaning given to it in Clause 20 (*Top-Up Security – Where Undersecured*).

"Security Interest"

means any mortgage, pledge, lien (other than a lien arising by operation of law), charge or other security interest securing any obligation of any person.

"Security Period"

means the period beginning on the date of this Deed and ending on the date on which all the Secured Liabilities have been unconditionally and irrevocably paid and discharged in full to the satisfaction of the Trustee or until such time as the Security Assets are released in accordance with Clause 21 (*Release of all Security Assets*).

"Security Top-Up"

has the meaning given to it in Clause 20 (*Top-Up Security – Where Undersecured*)

"SLP Interest"

has the meaning given to it in the Limited Partnership Agreement.

"Subsidiary"

means:

- (a) a subsidiary within the meaning of section 1159 of the Companies Act 2006; and
- (b) unless the context otherwise requires, a subsidiary undertaking within the meaning of section 1162 of the Companies Act 2006.

"Substituted Property"

has the meaning given to it in Clause 18 (Substitutions and Amendments).

"Substitution"

has the meaning given to it in Clause 18 (Substitutions and Amendments).

"Substitution Date"

has the meaning given to it in Clause 18;

"Substitution Request Notice"

means a notice substantially in the form set out in Schedule 4.

"Substitution Property"

has the meaning given to it in Clause 18 (Substitutions and Amendments).

"Substitution Valuation Date"

has the meaning given to it in Clause 18 (Substitutions and Amendments).

"Successor Trustee"

means any successor or successors to the Trustee as trustee of the Fund.

"Top-Up Property"

has the meaning given to it in Clause 20 (Top-Up Security

- Where Undersecured)

"Trustee Related Transferee"

has the meaning given to it in the Limited Partnership

Agreement.

"Valuation"

means a valuation of the Market Value of the Chargors' interest in the Security Assets, the Substituted Property, the Substitution Property, the Release Property and/or the Top Up Property by the Valuer, addressed to the

Trustee.

"Valuer"

means BNP Paribas Real Estate, Gerald Eve Ltd or any other firm of valuers of appropriate experience in valuing property such as the Mortgaged Property or any Qualifying Property (as applicable) as may be appointed by Group and approved by the Trustee (acting

reasonably) from time to time.

"Valuation Review"

has the meaning given to it in Clause 20 (Top-Up Security

- Where Undersecured)

"Valuation Review Date"

has the meaning given to it in Clause 20 (Top-Up Security

- Where Undersecured)

"Washroom Equipment"

means soap dispensers and other ancillary washroom or

cleaning equipment.

"Whitbread"

means Whitbread Plc (whose registered office is at Whitbread Court, Houghton Hall Business Park, Porz Avenue, Dunstable, Bedfordshire LU5 5XE (registered in

England No. 4120344)

"Whitbread Group"

means Whitbread and its Subsidiaries from time to time.

"WRL Agreement"

means the intra-group sale and purchase agreement relating to Premier Inn Limited's pub-restaurant business dated 4 October 2007 between Premier Inn Limited (1)

WRL (2) and Group (3).

#### 1.2 Construction

- (A) In this Deed unless the contrary intention appears, a reference to:
  - (i) an "authorisation" includes an authorisation, consent, approval, resolution, licence, exemption, filing, registration or notarisation;
  - (ii) "disposal" means a sale, transfer, grant, lease or other disposal, whether voluntary or involuntary, and dispose will be construed accordingly;

- (iii) A reference to any agreement or deed shall be construed as a reference to that agreement or deed as the same may be as the same may be amended, supplemented, varied, extended, restated and/or replaced from time to time,
- (iv) "this Security" means any security created by this Deed;
- a "person" includes any individual, company, corporation, unincorporated association or body (including a partnership, trust, joint venture or consortium), government, state, agency, organisation or other entity whether or not having separate legal personality;
- (vi) a "regulation" includes any regulation, rule, official directive, request or guideline (whether or not having the force of law but, if not having the force of law, being of a type with which persons to which it applies are accustomed to comply) or any governmental, inter-governmental or supranational body, agency, department or regulatory, self-regulatory or other authority or organisation;
- (vii) a "currency" is a reference to the lawful currency for the time being of the relevant country;
- (viii) a "provision of law" is a reference to that provision as extended, applied, amended or re-enacted and includes any subordinate legislation;
- (ix) a "Clause", a "Paragraph", a "Subparagraph" or a "Schedule" is a reference to a clause, paragraph or subparagraph of, or a schedule to, this Deed;
- (x) an Event of Default is "continuing" if it has not been remedied or waived.
- (xi) a "Party" or any other person includes its successors in title, permitted assigns and permitted transferees; and
- (xii) a "time of day" is a reference to London time.
- (B) Unless the contrary intention appears, a reference to a month or months is a reference to a period starting on one day in a calendar month and ending on the numerically corresponding day in the next calendar month or the calendar month in which it is to end, except that:
  - (i) if the numerically corresponding day is not a Business Day, the period will end on the next Business Day in that month (if there is one) or the preceding Business Day (if there is not);
  - (ii) if there is no numerically corresponding day in that month, that period will end on the last Business Day in that month; and
  - (iii) notwithstanding Subparagraph (i) above, a period which commences on the last Business Day of a month will end on the last Business Day in the next month or the calendar month in which it is to end, as appropriate.

- (C) Unless expressly provided to the contrary in this Deed, a person who is not a party to this Deed may not enforce any of its terms under the Contracts (Rights of Third Parties) Act 1999 and, notwithstanding any term of this Deed, no consent of any third party is required for any variation (including any release or compromise of any liability) or termination of this Deed.
- (D) Notwithstanding any other provision of this Deed, the Parties acknowledge that the rights and obligation of the Trustee under this Deed may be transferred to the Pension Protection Fund as a result of the operation of section 161 of and Schedule 6 to the Pensions Act 2004.
- (E) The headings in this Deed do not affect its interpretation.
- (F) Any covenant of the Chargors under this Deed (other than a payment obligation) remains in force during the Security Period.
- (G) Unless the context otherwise requires, a reference to a Security Asset includes the proceeds of sale of that Security Asset.
- (H) Where the Trustee has transferred its SLP Interest to a Successor Trustee or Trustee Related Trustee, any reference to the Trustee shall be a reference to a Successor Trustee or Trustee Related Transferee (as applicable).

#### 2. CREATION OF SECURITY

#### 2.1 General

All the security created under this Deed:

- (A) is created in favour of the Trustee as trustee for the Fund;
- (B) is security for the payment of all the Secured Liabilities; and
- (C) is made with full title guarantee in accordance with the Law of Property (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1994.

#### 2.2 Land

Each of the Chargors charges by way of first legal mortgage all its estate or interest in the Mortgaged Property.

#### 2.3 Chattels

- (A) The Chargor charges, by way of first fixed charge, all the Chattels.
- (B) The Chargor charges by way of a first floating charge, all the Chattels at any time not effectively charged pursuant to Clause 2.3(A).

#### 2.4 Insurance

Each of the Chargors assigns absolutely, to the extent they are assignable and subject to a proviso for re-assignment on redemption, all its rights in respect of any insurance policies now or hereafter effected in respect of the Mortgaged Property or the Chattels.

#### 2.5 Rent

Each of the Chargors assigns absolutely, to the extent they are assignable and subject to a proviso for re-assignment on redemption, all its rights in respect of the Leases.

#### 3. REPRESENTATIONS

#### 3.1 Representations

The representations set out in this Clause are made by each of the Chargors to the Trustee on the date of this Deed.

#### 3.2 Status

- (A) Except for SP, each of them is a limited liability company, duly incorporated and validly existing under the laws of its jurisdiction of incorporation.
- (B) SP is a Scottish partnership duly established as a partnership in Scotland under the Partnership Act 1890 and is validly existing under the laws of Scotland.

## 3.3 Powers and authority

Each of them has the power to enter into and perform, and has taken all necessary corporate and other action to authorise the entry into and performance of, this Deed.

#### 3.4 Legal validity

Subject to the Reservations, this Deed is its legally binding, valid and enforceable obligation.

#### 3.5 Non-conflict

The entry into and performance by it of this Deed do not conflict with:

- (A) any law or regulation applicable to it; or
- (B) its constitutional documents.

## 3.6 No default

No Event of Default has occurred and is outstanding.

#### 3.7 Authorisations

All authorisations required by it in connection with entry into, performance, validity and enforceability of, and the transactions contemplated by this Deed have been obtained or effected (as appropriate) and are in full force and effect.

## 3.8 Litigation

As at the date of this Deed, no action or proceeding of or before any court or administrative tribunal in any jurisdiction has been commenced or (to its knowledge) is threatened to restrain or impair the execution or delivery by it of this Deed or the performance and compliance by it of, and with, the obligations expressed to be assumed by it therein or the legality, validity and enforceability of this Deed and which has or, if adversely determined, would be reasonably likely to have a Material Adverse Effect.

## 3.9 Information for Property Reports

- (A) The written information provided to the lawyers who prepared any Property Report for the purpose of that Property Report was true in all material respects at the date it was expressed to be given.
- (B) The information referred to in Paragraph (A) above was at the date it was expressed to be given complete and did not omit any material information which, if disclosed at such time, would make that information untrue or misleading in any material respect.
- (C) As at the date of this Deed, so far as such Chargor is aware, nothing has occurred since the date of provision of the information referred to in Paragraph (A) above which renders that information untrue or misleading in any material respect.

#### 3.10 Title

Except as disclosed in writing to the Trustee prior to the date of this Deed (including in any Property Reports), in each case so far as the relevant Chargor is aware, in respect of each Mortgaged Property (as applicable):

- (A) the relevant Chargor is the legal and beneficial owner of the Mortgaged Property;
- (B) no breach of any law or regulation is outstanding which affects materially the value of the Mortgaged Property;
- (C) there are no covenants, agreements, stipulations, reservations, conditions, interest, rights or other matters which materially adversely affect the value of the Mortgaged Property;
- (D) nothing has arisen or has been created or is subsisting which would be an overriding interest, or an unregistered interest which overrides first registration or registered dispositions, over the Mortgaged Property;

- (E) no facilities necessary for the enjoyment and use of the Mortgaged Property are enjoyed by the Mortgaged Property on terms entitling any person to terminate or curtail its use:
- (F) it has received no written notice of any adverse claims by any person in respect of the ownership of the Mortgaged Property or any interest in it, nor has any acknowledgement been given to any person in respect of the Mortgaged Property, which materially affect the value of the Mortgaged Property; and
- (G) the Mortgaged Property is held by it free from any Security Interest and subject only to such tenancies or licences as have been identified to the Trustee.

#### 3.11 Ownership

All of the Security Assets in its name are owned by it and free from any and all Security Interests.

#### 3.12 Valuation

- (A) All material written information supplied by it to the relevant Valuer for the purposes of the Existing Valuation was true and accurate in all material respects as at its date or (if appropriate) as at the date (if any) at which it is stated to be given; and
- (B) To its knowledge, nothing has occurred since the date information referred to in Paragraph (A) above was supplied which, if it had occurred prior to the Existing Valuation, would materially adversely affect the Existing Valuation.

## 4. COVENANTS

#### 4.1 General

Each of the Chargors agrees to be bound by the covenants set out in this Clause.

#### 4.2 Notification of breach

Each of the Chargors must notify the Trustee of any breach of any of the provisions of this Deed promptly upon becoming aware of its occurrence.

## 4.3 Authorisations

Each of the Chargors must obtain, maintain and comply with the terms of any authorisation required under any law or regulation to enable it to perform its obligations under, or for the validity or enforceability of, this Deed.

#### 4.4 Compliance with laws

Each of the Chargors must comply in all respects with all laws to which it is subject where failure to do so has or is reasonably likely to have a Material Adverse Effect.

#### 4.5 Disposals and negative pledge

Each of the Chargors must not:

- (A) create or permit to subsist any Security Interest on any Security Asset;
- (B) sell, transfer, licence, lease or otherwise dispose of any Security Asset; or
- (C) agree to the assignment, material variation or surrender of any lease affecting any Security Asset,

save:

- (i) as expressly permitted by this Deed;
- (ii) with the written consent of the Trustee; or
- (iii) transfers of Chattels between the Chargors, provided they remain subject to this Security or such other security satisfactory to the Trustee (acting reasonably).

## 4.6 Repair

The relevant Chargor (as applicable) must keep or cause to be kept:

- (A) the Premises in good and substantial repair and condition (fair wear and tear excepted); and
- (B) the Fixtures and all plant and machinery and Chattels owned by it and which are in or on the Premises in good and substantial repair and condition (fair wear and tear excepted).

#### 4.7 Insurance

- (A) The relevant Chargor (as applicable) must insure the relevant Insured Property Assets against those risks normally insured against by reasonably prudent persons carrying on the same class of business as that carried on by it up to an amount that is commercially reasonable and prudent, and the relevant Chargor(s) shall use reasonable efforts to procure that the Trustee (as chargee) is named as co-insured in respect of all claims.
- (B) All moneys received under any insurance policy in respect of the Insured Property Assets must be applied:
  - (i) in replacing, restoring or reinstating the Insured Property Assets destroyed or damaged or in any other manner which the Trustee may agree (acting reasonably); or

- (ii) after an Event of Default has occurred, if the Trustee so directs and the terms of the relevant insurances allow, in or towards satisfaction of the Secured Liabilities.
- (C) The Chargors must not do or permit anything to be done which may make void or voidable any policy of insurance in connection with any Insured Property Asset.
- (D) The relevant Chargor (as applicable) must promptly pay all premiums and take all reasonable and necessary steps to keep each policy of insurance in respect of the Insured Property Assets in force.
- (E) The relevant Chargor (as applicable) must, as soon as practicable following a written demand from the Trustee, produce to the Trustee the policy, certificate or cover note relating to any insurance policy in respect of the Insured Property Assets and the receipt for the payment of any premium for any such insurance policy as the Trustee may reasonably request.

#### 4.8 Valuations

- (A) Group may at any time at its own expense, request the Valuers to prepare a Valuation.
- (B) The Trustee may once in every twelve-month period, at its own expense, request that Group instruct the Valuers to provide a Valuation and each Chargor agrees to cooperate with any such Valuation.

#### 4.9 Compliance with leases

Each of the Chargors must (as applicable):

- (A) perform in all material respects the terms on its part contained in any lease comprised in the Mortgaged Property; and
- (B) promptly give notice to the Trustee if it receives notice under section 146 of the Act or any proceedings are commenced for forfeiture of any lease comprised in the Mortgaged Property or the lessor or any superior lessor attempts to re-enter the relevant Mortgaged Property thereunder and at the request of the Trustee and the expense of the relevant Chargor to take such steps as the Trustee reasonably may require in relation thereto.

## 4.10 Compliance with applicable laws and regulations

The Chargors shall comply with the requirements of all laws and regulations applicable to the Mortgaged Property, non-compliance with which would materially adversely affect the ability of the Chargors as a whole to perform their obligations under this Deed.

#### 4.11 Notices

Each Chargor must, within 14 days after the receipt by such Chargor of any application, requirement, order or notice which may, in the Trustee' reasonable opinion, materially affect the

value of the Mortgaged Property served or given by any public or local or any other authority with respect to the Mortgaged Property (or any part of it):

- (A) deliver a copy to the Trustee; and
- (B) inform the Trustee of the steps taken or proposed to be taken to comply with the relevant requirement.

## 4.12 Dealings with leases

- (A) Save with the prior written consent of the Trustee (such consent not to be unreasonably withheld or delayed) or as provided in paragraph (B) below the Chargors must not:
  - (i) grant or agree to grant (whether in exercise or independently of any statutory power) any lease or tenancy of any Mortgaged Property or any part of it;
  - (ii) accept a surrender of any lease or tenancy of any Mortgaged Property; or
  - (iii) confer upon any person any contractual licence or right to occupy any Mortgaged Property.

(B)

- in respect of the Non-PFP Mortgaged Property at Euston, the relevant Chargor may grant leases of residential units to owners of flats claiming a right to extend their leases under any statutory provision;
- (ii) in respect of the Non-PFP Mortgaged Property at Bristol, the relevant Chargor may grant occupational leases of retail units provided that no fine or premium is levied; and
- (iii) in respect of PFP Mortgaged Property, any leases granted to PIHL and/or Group on or about 25 February 2010 or as contemplated by the PFP Transaction Documents.

#### 4.13 H.M. Land Registry

The Chargors consent to the entry of a restriction in standard Form P in the following terms (or in such other revised form as the Land Registry may require) against the registered titles to the Mortgaged Property:

No disposition of the registered estate by the proprietor of the registered estate is to be registered without a written consent signed by the proprietor for the time being of the charge dated [date of this charge] in favour of Whitbread Pension Trustees referred to in the charges register or their conveyancer or without a certificate signed by a conveyancer that the provisions of Clause 4.5 of the legal charge dated [date of this charge] and made between (1) Premier Inn Hotels Limited, Whitbread Group PLC, Farringdon Scottish Partnership, Premier Inn Limited and Whitbread Restaurants Limited, (2) Whitbread Group PLC and (3) Whitbread Pensions Trustees have been complied with.

#### 4.14 Title deeds

Following the date of this Deed, the Chargors shall hold all deeds and documents of title relating to the Mortgaged Property expressly to the order of the Trustee.

#### 4.15 Access

The Chargors shall permit the Trustee and any person nominated by them at all reasonable times and on reasonable prior written notice to enter any part of the Mortgaged Property and view its condition subject to compliance with applicable laws and regulations relating to health and safety and construction design management.

## 4.16 Power to remedy

- (A) If any Chargor breaches or fails to perform any of its material obligations under this Deed affecting the Mortgaged Property within one month of written notice from the Trustee requesting the Chargor to perform such obligation or remedy such breach, the relevant Chargor must allow the Trustee or its agents and contractors on reasonable prior written notice to:
  - (i) enter any part of the Mortgaged Property;
  - (ii) comply with or object to any notice served on the Chargor in respect of the Mortgaged Property;
  - (iii) take any action as the Trustee may reasonably consider necessary or desirable to prevent or remedy any breach of any such term; or
  - (iv) comply with or object to any such notice,

provided that the Trustee may act on such shorter notice period as it deems reasonable in circumstances where such breach or failure under this Deed would, in the Trustee's reasonable opinion, materially affect the value of the Mortgaged Property.

(B) The relevant Chargor must promptly following written request by the Trustee pay the proper costs and expenses of the Trustee or its agents and contractors reasonably incurred in connection with any action taken by them under this Clause 4.16.

#### 4.17 Notices to tenants

The relevant Chargors must:

- (A) as soon as practicable following the date of this Deed, serve a notice of assignment, substantially in the form of Part 1 of Schedule 2 (Forms of Letter for Occupational Tenants), on each tenant of the Mortgaged Property; and
- (B) use its reasonable endeavours to ensure that each such tenant acknowledges that notice, substantially in the form of Part 2 of Schedule 2 (Forms of Letter for Occupational Tenants).

#### 5. DEFAULT

#### 5.1 Events of Default

Each of the events set out in this Clause is an "Event of Default".

#### 5.2 Breach of this Deed

Any Chargor does not comply with any term of this Deed unless the non-compliance:

- (A) is capable of remedy; and
- (B) is remedied within one month of the earlier of the Trustee giving written notice to the relevant Chargor and the relevant Chargor becoming aware of the non-compliance.

#### 5.3 Breach of the Deed of Covenant

- (A) Neither Whitbread Group nor Group makes a payment to the Fund when due under the terms of the Deed of Covenant, except in cases where such delay or failure to pay is caused by administrative or technical error and is remedied within ten Business Days after the earlier of a Chargor receiving written notice from the Trustee of that non-payment or a Chargor becoming aware of the non-payment.
- (B) Clause 5.3(A) shall immediately and automatically cease to apply on and from the date on which the Deed of Covenant ceases to have effect.

### 5.4 Breach of the Funding Framework Deed

- (A) Neither Whitbread Group nor Group makes a payment to the Fund due under the terms of the Funding Framework Deed, except in cases where such delay or failure to pay is caused by administrative or technical error and is remedied within ten Business Days after the earlier of a Chargor receiving written notice from the Trustee of that nonpayment or a Chargor becoming aware of the non-payment.
- (B) Clause 5.4(A) shall immediately and automatically cease to apply on and from the date on which the Deed of Covenant ceases to have effect.

## 5.5 Breach of the Deed of Undertaking

Group does not comply with Clause 6 (*Provision of information*) of the Deed of Undertaking unless the circumstances giving rise to the non-compliance:

- (A) are capable of remedy; and
- (B) are remedied within one month of the earlier of the Trustee giving written notice to Group and Group becoming aware of the non-compliance.

#### 5.6 PFP Transaction Documents

- (A) The occurrence (after the date of this Deed) of any of the events set out in paragraphs 1(A) to 1(I) (inclusive) of Part 3 of the Schedule to the Limited Partnership Agreement.
- (B) The occurrence (after the date of this Deed) of any of the events set out in Part 4 of the Schedule to the Limited Partnership Agreement.
- (C) The occurrence (after the date of this Deed) of any of the events set out in paragraphs 1(A) to 1(H) (inclusive) of Part 3 of the Schedule to the Partnership Agreement.
- (D) Neither Whitbread nor Group makes a payment to the Trustee or to any Successor Trustee or Trustee Related Transferee when due under the PFP Transaction Documents, except in cases where such delay or failure to pay is caused by administrative or technical error and is remedied within three Business Days after the earlier of a Chargor receiving written notice of the non-payment or a Chargor becoming aware of the non-payment.
- (E) Clauses 5.6(A) to (D) shall immediately and automatically cease to apply on and from the occurrence of a PFP Termination Event.

#### 5.7 Misrepresentation

A representation made by any Chargor in this Deed is incorrect or misleading in any material respect when made, unless the circumstances giving rise to the misrepresentation:

- (A) are capable of remedy; and
- (B) are remedied within one month of the earlier of the Trustee giving written notice to the relevant Chargor and to the relevant Chargor becoming aware of the non-compliance.

#### 5.8 Insolvency proceedings

- (A) Except as provided below, either of the following occurs in respect of Group or any Chargor:
  - (i) any corporate action or other formal steps are taken or legal proceedings started or analogous action taken for the liquidation or winding-up or dissolution of any Chargor or Group or for the appointment of a receiver, trustee, administrative receiver, administrator or similar officer of any Chargor or Group over all or any substantial part of its revenues or assets (save for any corporate action or other formal steps which would not have a Material Adverse Effect); or
  - (ii) Group or any Chargor is unable or admits in writing its inability to pay its debts as they mature or commences negotiations with a view to, or takes any proceedings under any law for, a readjustment or deferment of all or any substantial part of its obligations or makes or enters into a general assignment, arrangement or composition with or for the benefit of its creditors (save for any

corporate action or other formal steps which would not have a Material Adverse Effect).

(B) Clause 5.8(A) above does not apply to a petition for winding-up presented by a creditor which is being contested in good faith and with due diligence and is discharged or struck out within 15 Business Days.

#### 5.9 Cessation of business

Group or any Chargor shall suspend or threaten to suspend all or a part of its operations which is substantial by comparison to the business of the Whitbread Group taken as a whole or all or a substantial part of its assets shall be expropriated by any governmental or other competent authority.

#### 5.10 Effectiveness of this Deed

- (A) It is or becomes unlawful for any Chargor to perform any of its material obligations under this Deed.
- (B) This Deed is not effective in accordance with its terms or is alleged by any Chargor to be ineffective in accordance with its terms for any reason.
- (C) Any Chargor repudiates this Deed or evidences an intention to repudiate this Deed.

#### 5.11 Material adverse change

Any event or series of events occurs which has, is reasonably likely to have, a Material Adverse Effect.

## 6. WHEN SECURITY BECOMES ENFORCEABLE

#### 6.1 Event of Default

This Security will become immediately enforceable if an Event of Default occurs and is continuing.

#### 6.2 Discretion

After this Security has become enforceable, the Trustee may in its absolute discretion enforce all or any part of this Security in any manner it sees fit.

#### 6.3 Power of sale

The power of sale and other powers conferred by Section 101 of the Act, as amended by this Deed, will be immediately exercisable at any time after this Security has become enforceable.

#### 7. ENFORCEMENT OF SECURITY

#### 7.1 General

- (A) For the purposes of all powers implied by statute, the Secured Liabilities are deemed to have become due and payable on the date of this Deed.
- (B) Section 103 of the Act (restricting the power of sale) and Section 93 of the Act (restricting the right of consolidation) do not apply to this Security.
- (C) The statutory powers of leasing conferred on the Trustee are extended so as to authorise the Trustee to lease, make agreements for leases, accept surrenders of leases and grant options as the Trustee may think fit and without the need to comply with any provision of section 99 or 100 of the Act.

#### 7.2 No liability as mortgagee in possession

No Trustee or any Receiver will be liable, by reason of entering into possession of a Security Asset, to account as mortgagee in possession or for any loss on realisation or for any default or omission for which a mortgagee in possession might be liable except to the extent that they shall be caused by the fraud or wilful default or negligence of the Trustee or any Receiver or any of their respective officers, employees or agents.

#### 7.3 Privileges

Each Receiver and the Trustee are entitled to all the rights, powers, privileges and immunities conferred by the Act on mortgagees and receivers duly appointed under the Act, except that Section 103 of the Act does not apply.

#### 7.4 Protection of third parties

No person (including a purchaser) dealing with the Trustee or a Receiver or its or his agents will be concerned to enquire:

- (A) whether the Secured Liabilities have become payable;
- (B) whether any power which the Trustee or a Receiver is/are purporting to exercise has become exercisable or is being properly exercised;
- (C) whether any money remains due in respect of the Secured Liabilities; or
- (D) how any money paid to the Trustee or to that Receiver is to be applied.

#### 7.5 Redemption of prior mortgages

- (A) At any time after this Security has become enforceable, the Trustee may:
  - (i) redeem any prior Security Interest against any Security Asset; and/or

- (ii) procure the transfer of that Security Interest to themselves; and/or
- (iii) settle and pass the accounts of the prior mortgagee, chargee or encumbrancer; any accounts so settled and passed will be, in the absence of manifest error, conclusive and binding on the Chargors.
- (B) The Chargors must pay to the Trustee, immediately on demand, the costs and expenses incurred by the Trustee in connection with any such redemption and/or transfer, including the payment of any principal or interest.

#### 8. RECEIVER

#### 8.1 Appointment of Receiver

- (A) Except as provided below, the Trustee may appoint any one or more qualified persons to be a Receiver of all or any part of the Security Assets if:
  - (i) this Security has become enforceable; or
  - (ii) the Chargors so request the Trustee in writing at any time.
- (B) Any appointment under Clause 8.1(A) above may be by deed, under seal or in writing under its hand.
- (C) Except as provided below, any restriction imposed by law on the right of a mortgagee to appoint a Receiver (including under section 109(1) of the Act) does not apply to this Deed.
- (D) The Trustee is not entitled to appoint a Receiver solely as a result of the obtaining of a moratorium (or anything done with a view to obtaining a moratorium) under section 1A of the Insolvency Act 1986.

#### 8.2 Removal

The Trustee may by writing (subject to any requirement for an order of the court in the case of an administrative receiver) remove any Receiver appointed by them and may, whenever they think fit, appoint a new Receiver in the place of any Receiver whose appointment may for any reason have terminated.

#### 8.3 Remuneration

Subject to Section 36 of the Insolvency Act 1986, the Trustee may fix the remuneration of any Receiver appointed by them and the maximum rate specified in Section 109(6) of the Act will not apply.

#### 8.4 Agent of the Chargors

(A) A Receiver will be deemed to be the agent of the Chargors for all purposes and accordingly will be deemed to be in the same position as a Receiver duly appointed by

a mortgagee under the Act. The Chargors alone are responsible for the contracts, engagements, acts, omissions, defaults and losses of a Receiver and for liabilities incurred by a Receiver.

(B) No Trustee will incur any liability (either to the Chargors or to any other person) by reason of the appointment of a Receiver or for any other reason.

#### 8.5 Relationship with Trustee

To the fullest extent allowed by law, any right, power or discretion conferred by this Deed (either expressly or impliedly) or by law on a Receiver may after this Security becomes enforceable be exercised by the Trustee in relation to any Security Asset without first appointing a Receiver and notwithstanding the appointment of a Receiver.

#### 9. POWERS OF RECEIVER

#### 9.1 General

- (A) A Receiver has all of the rights, powers and discretions set out below in this Clause in addition to those conferred on it by any law; this includes:
  - (i) in the case of an administrative receiver, all the rights, powers and discretions conferred on an administrative receiver under Schedule 1 of the Insolvency Act 1986; and
  - (ii) otherwise, all the rights, powers and discretions conferred on a receiver (or a receiver and manager) under the Act and the Insolvency Act 1986.
- (B) If there is more than one Receiver holding office at the same time, each Receiver may (unless the document appointing him states otherwise) exercise all of the powers conferred on a Receiver under this Deed individually and to the exclusion of any other Receiver.

### 9.2 Possession

A Receiver may take immediate possession of, get in and collect any Security Asset.

#### 9.3 Carry on business

A Receiver may carry on any business of the Chargors in any manner he thinks fit.

#### 9.4 Sale of assets

(A) A Receiver may sell, exchange, convert into money and realise any Security Asset by public auction or private contract and generally in any manner and on any terms which he thinks fit and any property acquired by such exchange shall be charged to the Trustee as if it comprised part of the Security Assets at the date of this Deed.

- (B) The consideration for any such transaction may consist of cash, debentures or other obligations, shares, stock or other valuable consideration and any such consideration may be payable in a lump sum or by instalments spread over any period which he thinks fit.
- (C) Fixtures, other than landlord's fixtures, may be severed and sold separately from the property containing them without the consent of the Chargors.

#### 9.5 Leases

A Receiver may let any Security Asset for any term and at any rent (with or without a premium) which he thinks fit and may accept a surrender of any lease or tenancy of any Security Asset on any terms which he thinks fit (including the payment of money to a lessee or tenant on a surrender).

#### 9.6 Compromise

A Receiver may settle, adjust, refer to arbitration, compromise and arrange any claim, account, dispute, question or demand with or by any person who is or claims to be a creditor of the Chargors or relating in any way to any Security Asset.

#### 9.7 Legal actions

A Receiver may bring, prosecute, enforce, defend and abandon any action, suit or proceedings in relation to any Security Asset which he thinks fit.

#### 9.8 Receipts

A Receiver may give a valid receipt for any moneys and execute any assurance or thing which may be proper or desirable for realising any Security Asset.

#### 9.9 Delegation

A Receiver may delegate his powers in accordance with this Deed.

#### 9.10 Protection of assets

A Receiver may:

- (A) effect any repair or insurance and do any other act which the Chargors might do in the ordinary conduct of its business to protect or improve any Security Asset;
- (B) commence and/or complete any building operation; and
- (C) apply for and maintain any planning permission, building regulation approval or any other authorisation.

in each case as he thinks fit.

#### 9.11 Other powers

A Receiver may:

- (A) do all other acts and things which he may consider desirable or necessary for realising any Security Asset or incidental or conducive to any of the rights, powers or discretions conferred on a Receiver under or by virtue of this Deed or law; and
- (B) exercise in relation to any Security Asset all the powers, authorities and things which he would be capable of exercising if he were the absolute beneficial owner of that Security Asset.

#### 10. APPLICATION OF PROCEEDS

Any moneys received by the Trustee or any Receiver after this Security has become enforceable must be applied in the following order of priority:

(A) in or towards payment of or provision for all costs and expenses incurred by the Trustee or any Receiver under or in connection with this Deed and of all remuneration due to any Receiver under or in connection with this Deed;

(B)

- (i) in or towards payment of or provision for the Secured Liabilities to the extent then due and payable up to a maximum total amount of the Required Secured Amount; and/or
- (ii) following an Event of Default under Clause 5.8 or Clause 5.9 only, in or towards payment of or provision for the Secured Liabilities (whether actual or contingent) up to a maximum total amount of the Required Secured Amount; and
- (C) in payment of the surplus (if any) to the Chargors or other person entitled to it.

This Clause is subject to the payment of any claims having priority over this Security.

#### 11. EXPENSES AND INDEMNITY

The Chargors must:

- (A) within three Business Days of demand pay all costs and expenses (including legal fees) properly incurred in connection with this Deed by the Trustee, any Receiver, attorney, manager, agent or other person appointed by the Trustee under this Deed including any arising from any actual or alleged breach by any person of any law or regulation; and
- (B) keep each of the parties referred to in (A) indemnified against any failure or delay in paying those costs or expenses.

#### 12. DELEGATION

#### 12.1 Power of Attorney

The Trustee or any Receiver may delegate by power of attorney or in any other manner to any person any right, power or discretion exercisable by them or it under this Deed.

#### 12.2 Terms

Any such delegation may be made upon any terms (including power to sub-delegate) which the Trustee or any Receiver may think fit.

## 12.3 Liability

Neither the Trustee nor any Receiver will be in any way liable or responsible to the Chargors for any loss or liability arising from any act, default, omission or misconduct on the part of any delegate or sub-delegate.

#### 13. FURTHER ASSURANCES

The Chargors must, at their own expense, take whatever action the Trustee or a Receiver may require for:

- (A) creating, perfecting or protecting any security intended to be created by this Deed; or
- (B) facilitating the realisation of any Security Asset, or the exercise of any right, power or discretion exercisable, by the Trustee or any Receiver or any of its delegates or subdelegates in respect of any Security Asset.

This includes:

- (i) the execution of any transfer, conveyance, assignment or assurance of any property, whether to a Trustee or to its nominee; or
- (ii) the giving of any notice, order or direction and the making of any registration,

for the purposes set out in paragraphs (A) and (B) above which, in any such case, the Trustee may think reasonably expedient.

## 14. COVENANT TO PAY

The Chargors must pay or discharge the Secured Liabilities when due.

## 15. POWER OF ATTORNEY

The Chargors, by way of security, irrevocably and severally appoints the Trustee, each Receiver and any of its delegates or sub-delegates to be their attorney to take any action which the Chargors are obliged to take under this Deed but have not taken. The Chargors ratify and confirm whatever any attorney does or purports to do under its appointment under this Clause.

#### 16. PRESERVATION OF SECURITY

#### 16.1 Continuing security

This Security is continuing and will extend to the ultimate balance of the Secured Liabilities unless and until discharge in accordance with Clause 21 (*Release of all Security Assets*). No part of this Security will be considered satisfied or discharged by any intermediate payment, discharge or satisfaction of the whole or any part of the Secured Liabilities.

#### 16.2 Reinstatement

- (A) If any discharge or arrangement is made in whole or in part on the faith of any payment, security or other disposition which is avoided or must be restored on insolvency, liquidation or otherwise without limitation, the liability of the Chargor under this Deed will continue as if the discharge or arrangement had not occurred.
- (B) The Trustee may concede or compromise any claim that any payment, security or other disposition is liable to avoidance or restoration.

#### 16.3 Waiver of defences

The obligations of the Chargors under this Deed will not be affected by any act, omission or thing which, but for this provision, would reduce, release or prejudice any of its obligations under this Deed (whether or not known to the Chargor or any Trustee). This includes:

- (A) any time or waiver granted to, or composition with, any person;
- (B) the release of any person under the terms of any composition or arrangement;
- (C) the taking, variation, compromise, exchange, renewal or release of, or refusal or neglect to perfect, take up or enforce, any rights against, or security over assets of, any person;
- (D) any non-presentation or non-observance of any formality or other requirement in respect of any instruments or any failure to realise the full value of any security;
- (E) any incapacity or lack of power, authority or legal personality of or dissolution or change in the members or status of any person;
- (F) any amendment (however fundamental) of this Deed or any other document or security; or
- (G) any unenforceability, illegality, invalidity or non-provability of any obligation of any person under this Deed or any other document or security.

#### 16.4 Immediate recourse

The Chargors waive any right it may have of first requiring any Trustee to proceed against or enforce any other rights or security or claim payment from any person before claiming from the Chargors under this Deed.

#### 16.5 Appropriations

The Trustee may at any time during the Security Period without affecting the liability of the Chargors under this Deed:

- (A) (i) refrain from applying or enforcing any other moneys, security or rights held or received by the Trustee in respect of those amounts; or
  - (ii) apply and enforce the same in such manner and order as it sees fit (whether against those amounts or otherwise); and
- (A) hold in an interest bearing suspense account any moneys received from the Chargors or on account of the liability of the Chargors under this Deed.

#### 16.6 Non-competition

Unless:

- (A) the Security Period has expired;
- (B) the Security has been released in accordance with Clause 21 (*Release of all Security Assets*); or
- (C) the Trustee otherwise directs,

the Chargors will not, after a claim has been made under this Deed or by virtue of any payment or performance by it under this Deed:

- (i) be subrogated to any rights, security or moneys held, received or receivable by any Trustee;
- (ii) be entitled to any right of contribution or indemnity in respect of any payment made or moneys received on account of the Chargors' liability under this Deed;
- (iii) claim, rank, prove or vote as a creditor of Group or its estate in competition with any Trustee; or
- (iv) receive, claim or have the benefit of any payment, distribution or security from or on account of Group, or exercise any right of set-off as against Group.

The Chargors must hold in trust for and immediately pay or transfer to the Trustee any payment or distribution or benefit of security received by them contrary to this Clause or in accordance with any directions given by the Trustee under this Clause as directed by the Trustee.

## 16.7 Additional security

This Security is in addition to and is not in any way prejudiced by any other security now or subsequently held by the Trustee.

#### 17. CHANGES TO THE PARTIES

## 17.1 Assignments and transfers by the Chargor

None of the Chargors nor Group may assign or transfer any of its rights and obligations under this Deed other than with the prior written consent of the Trustee.

## 17.2 Assignments and transfers by the Trustees

- (A) The Chargors and Group acknowledge that:
  - (i) the rights and obligations of the Trustee under this Deed may be transferred to the Pension Protection Fund as a result of the operation of section 161 of and Schedule 6 to the Pensions Act 2004; and
  - (ii) the Trustee may assign its rights and obligations under this Deed to a Successor Trustee or a Trustee Related Transferee where it is permitted to transfer its entire SLP Interest to a Successor Trustee or a Trustee Related Transferee under the terms of the Limited Partnership Agreement.
- (B) The Trustee undertakes to consult with the Chargors and Group in connection with any assignment under paragraph (A)(ii) above.

#### 18. SUBSTITUTIONS AND AMENDMENTS

- (A) At any time while this Deed remains in force and before an Event of Default has occurred, the Chargors or Group shall have the right, subject to and in accordance with the remainder of this Clause 18, to substitute the security created by this Deed over the whole or part of any Mortgaged Property with a fixed legal mortgage over any Qualifying Property of any Chargor or another member of the Whitbread Group (a "Substitution").
- (B) To request a Substitution, the relevant Chargor or Group must serve a properly completed Substitution Request Notice on the Trustee in accordance with Clause 24 (Notices). The Substitution Request Notice must specify the date on which the Substitution is proposed to take place (the "Substitution Date") (which must be no later than two months after the Substitution Request Notice) and must specify, and state the Market Value of:
  - (i) the Mortgaged Property (or any part of any Mortgaged Property) to be released from the security created by this Deed (the "Substituted Property"); and
  - (ii) the Qualifying Property to be charged as replacement security for the Substituted Property (the "Substitution Property")

in each case valued as at a date no earlier than the date falling one month before the Substitution Date (the "Substitution Valuation Date").

(C) The relevant Chargor or Group must, at the same time that it submits a Substitution Request Notice to the Trustee, also provide the Trustee with a Valuation evidencing the

Market Value of the Substituted Property and the Substitution Property as set out in the Substitution Request Notice in accordance with Clause 18(B).

- (D) Subject to the conditions set out in this Clause 18, the Substitution will take place on the Substitution Date and each of the Chargors, Group and the Trustee shall co-operate (acting in good faith and in a timely manner) to arrange for the formalities of:
  - (i) the creation of a first legal mortgage over the Substitution Property in favour of the Trustee by deed expressed to be supplemental to this Deed to be held as part of the Mortgaged Property to secure the Secured Liabilities, such supplemental deed of charge to be substantially in the form set out in Schedule 7 with such amendments as the parties agree (acting reasonably) and, where relevant, containing a covenant from the relevant Chargor (or such other member of the Whitbread Group as is the chargor of the Substitution Property) to be bound by all the covenants and provisions of this Deed which are expressed to be binding on the Chargor; and
  - (ii) the release of the Substituted Property from the security created by this Deed, including such deed of release and/or Land Registry Form DS1 or DS3 as Group and the Chargors may reasonably require to give effect to the Substitution,

to be completed on the Substitution Date, or as soon after the Substitution Date as reasonably practicable, provided that the Trustee shall not be obliged to provide any of the release documentation referred to in Clause 18(D)(ii) until the supplemental deed of charge referred to in Clause 18(D)(i) has been completed.

- (E) Save where the provisions of Clause 19 (*Release Where* Over-secured) apply, no Substitution shall be permitted unless the Market Value of the Substitution Property is greater than or equal to the Market Value of the Substituted Property as at the relevant Substitution Valuation Date.
- (F) A Substitution Request Notice may be revoked by Group at any time prior to the Substitution Date to which the Substitution Request Notice relates by notice to the Trustee.
- (G) All costs, fees and expenses incurred by the Trustee in respect of a Substitution shall be borne by Group and not by the Trustee.

#### 19. RELEASE - WHERE OVER-SECURED

- (A) Without prejudice to its rights under Clause 21 (*Release of all Security Assets*), any Chargor or Group may, at any time when the Secured Excess is greater than zero submit to the Trustee a request that some or all of the Security Assets (the "Release Property") be released from this Security (a "Release").
- (B) To request a Release, the relevant Chargor or Group must serve a properly completed Release Request Notice on the Trustee in accordance with Clause 24 (Notices). The Release Request Notice must specify the date on which the Release is proposed to

take place (the "Release Date") (which shall be not later than two months after the date of the Release Request Notice) and must specify:

- (i) the Required Secured Amount as at the Release Date;
- (ii) the Secured Excess as at the Release Date;
- (iii) the Market Value of the Security Assets as a whole as at the Release Date; and
- (iv) the Market Value of the proposed Release Property as at the Release Date.
- (C) The relevant Chargor or Group must, at the same time that it submits a Release Request Notice to the Trustee, also provide the Trustee with a Valuation evidencing the Market Value of the Security Assets as a whole at the Release Date and this Valuation should specifically identify the Market Value of the proposed Release Property as at the Release Date.
- (D) The Trustee must consent to a Release Request Notice if (but only to the extent that):
  - (i) the Secured Excess is greater than £1,000,000; and
  - the Market Value of the proposed Release Property at the Release Valuation
    Date is no greater than the Secured Excess at the Release Valuation Date.
- (E) If the Trustee is satisfied (acting reasonably) that the Release Request Notice is valid the Release will take place on the Release Date and each of the Chargors, Group and the Trustee shall co-operate (acting in good faith) to take whatever action is necessary to release the Release Property from this Security (such action to include completion of such deed of release and/or Land Registry Form DS1 or DS3 and Land Registry RX3 as Group or the Chargors may reasonably require to give effect to the release).
- (F) All costs, fees and expenses properly incurred by the Trustee in respect of a Release shall be borne by the Group and not by the Trustee.

#### 20. TOP-UP SECURITY - WHERE UNDERSECURED

- (A) If, following the completion of a Valuation carried out in accordance with Clause 4.8(B) (a "Valuation Review"), the results of that Valuation show that the total Market Value of the Security Assets as a whole as at the date of such Valuation (the "Valuation Review Date") is lower than the Required Secured Amount (a "Security Deficit") the Trustee shall be entitled to request that additional property be made subject to this Security (a "Security Top-Up").
- (B) To request a Security Top-Up, the relevant Trustee must serve a properly completed Top-Up Request Notice on the Group and Chargors in accordance with Clause 24 within one month of the Valuation Review Date. The Top-Up Request Notice must specify:
  - (i) the Required Secured Amount as at the Release Valuation Date;

- (ii) the Market Value of the Security Assets as a whole as at the Valuation Review Date; and
- (iii) the Security Deficit as at the Valuation Review Date.
- (C) The Trustee must, at the same time that it submits a Top-Up Request Notice, also provide the Group and the Chargors with a confirmation that the amounts specified in paragraph (B)(i) to (iii) have been prepared using the most recent Valuation Review.
- (D) The Group and the Chargors shall be entitled (acting reasonably) to refuse a Top-Up Request Notice if any of the amounts specified therein do not accord with the Valuation Review.
- (E) Subject to paragraph (D) above, the Group and Chargors must consent to a duly completed Top-Up Request Notice, and take the actions specified in paragraph (F) below, if (but only to the extent that) the Security Deficit is greater than £1,000,000.
- (F) Subject to paragraph (E) above, the Group and/or the Chargors shall, as soon as practicable following a Top-Up Request Notice, ensure that Qualifying Property is charged in favour of the Trustee (the "Top-Up Property"). In connection with this paragraph (F), the Chargors, Group and the Trustee shall co-operate (acting in good faith and in a timely manner) to arrange for the formalities of the creation of a first legal mortgage over the Top-Up Property in favour of the Trustee by deed expressed to be supplemental to this Deed to be held as part of the Mortgaged Property to secure the Secured Liabilities, such supplemental deed of charge to be substantially in the form set out in Schedule 6 with such amendments as the parties agree (acting reasonably) and, where relevant, containing a covenant from the relevant Chargor (or such other member of the Whitbread Group as is the chargor of the Top-Up Property) to be bound by all the covenants and provisions of this Deed which are expressed to be binding on the Chargor.
- (G) The Group and Chargors shall have complete discretion as to which Chargor(s) charge Top-Up Property in satisfaction of a Top-Up Request Notice.
- (H) All costs, fees and expenses properly incurred by the Trustee in respect of a Security Top-Up shall be borne by Group or the Chargors (as applicable).
- (I) Notwithstanding any provision of this Clause 20, neither the Group nor any Chargor shall be required to charge any Top-Up Property where the effect of doing so would result in the Market Value of Secured Assets (as a whole and taking into account any actual or proposed Top-Up Property) exceeding the Required Secured Amount.

#### 21. RELEASE OF ALL SECURITY ASSETS

(A) At any time at which (i) no Secured Liabilities remain outstanding under the Deed of Covenant and (ii) no obligations as to the payment of money remain outstanding under the PFP Transaction Documents, the Trustee shall, at the request of the Chargors or Group, co-operate (acting in good faith and in a timely manner) to take whatever action the Chargors or Group deem necessary or desirable to release the Security Assets

from this Security (such action to include completion of such deed of release and/or Land Registry Form DS1 or DS3 and Land Registry RX3 as Group or the Chargors may require to give effect to the Release).

- (B) If the Trustee reasonably considers, on the basis of independent legal advice, that any payment to, or security provided to it is capable of being avoided, reduced or invalidated by virtue of applicable law the liability of the Chargors under this Deed and this Security shall continue as if such amounts had not been paid or as if any such security had not been provided.
- (C) All costs, fees and expenses properly incurred by the Trustee in respect of a release under this Clause 21 shall be borne by the Group and not by the Trustee.

#### 22. SEVERABILITY

If a term of this Deed is or becomes illegal, invalid or unenforceable in any jurisdiction, that shall not affect:

- (A) the legality, validity or enforceability in that jurisdiction of any other term of this Deed; or
- (B) the legality, validity or enforceability in other jurisdictions of that or any other term of this Deed.

#### 23. COUNTERPARTS

This Deed may be executed in any number of counterparts. This has the same effect as if the signatures on the counterparts were on a single copy of this Deed.

#### 24. NOTICES

#### 24.1 In writing

- (A) Any communication in connection with this Deed must be in writing and, unless otherwise stated, may be given in person, by post or fax.
- (B) Unless it is agreed to the contrary, any consent or agreement required under this Deed must be given in writing.

#### 24.2 Electronic Communication

Any communication to be made between the Chargors and the Trustee under or in connection with this Deed may be made by electronic mail or other electronic means, if the Chargors and the Trustee:

(A) agree that, unless and until notified to the contrary, this is to be an accepted form of communication;

- (B) notify each other in writing of their electronic mail address and/or any other information required to enable the sending and receipt of information by that means; and
- (C) notify each other of any change to their address or any other such information supplied by them.

#### 24.3 Contact details

(A) The contact details of the Chargors for this purpose are:

Address:

Whitbread Court

Houghton Hall Business Park

Porz Avenue Dunstable

Bedfordshire LU5 5XE

E-mail:

chris.vaughan@whitbread.com

Attention:

Chris Vaughan

(B) The contact details of Group for this purpose are:

Address:

Whitbread Court

Houghton Hall Business Park

Porz Avenue Dunstable

Bedfordshire LU5 5XE

E-mail:

chris.vaughan@whitbread.com

Attention:

Chris Vaughan

(C) The contact details of the Trustee for this purpose are:

Address:

Whitbread Court

Houghton Hall Business Park

Porz Avenue Dunstable

Bedfordshire LU5 5XE

E-mail:

steve.jones@whitbread.com

Attention:

Steve Jones

#### 24.4 Effectiveness

(A) Except as provided below, any communication in connection with this Deed will be deemed to be given as follows:

- (i) if delivered in person, at the time of delivery;
- (ii) if posted, five days after being deposited in the post, postage prepaid, in a correctly addressed envelope; and
- (iii) if by fax, when received in legible form
- (iv) if by electronic mail, only when actually received in readable form and only if it is addressed in such a manner as the party receiving the notice shall specify for this purpose.
- (B) A communication given under Paragraph (A) above but received on a non-working day or after business hours in the place of receipt will only be deemed to be given on the next working day in that place.

#### 25. LANGUAGE

Any notice given in connection with this Deed must be in English.

#### 26. GOVERNING LAW

This Deed, and any obligations arising out of or in connection with it (whether contractual or non-contractual) shall be governed by and construed in accordance with English law.

#### 27. ENFORCEMENT

#### 27.1 Jurisdiction

- (A) The English courts have non-exclusive jurisdiction to settle any dispute in connection with this Deed.
- (B) The English courts are the most appropriate and convenient courts to settle any such dispute.

This Deed has been entered into and delivered as a deed on the date stated at the beginning of this Deed.

### Schedule 1 Mortgaged Property

## Part A - Non-PFP Mortgaged Property

Site name	Address	Post code	Title number	Proprietor
London Euston Premier Inn	1 Duke's Road, London	WC1H 9FJ	LN162103	Premier Inn Hotels Limited
Bristol City Centre (Haymarket) Premier Inn	The Haymarket, Bristol	BS1 3LR	BL13711	Premier Inn Hotels Limited
London Tower Bridge Premier Inn	159 Tower Bridge Road, London	SE1 3LP	TGL4992	Premier Inn Hotels Limited
Manchester City Centre (Deansgate Lock) Premier Inn	Medlock Street, Manchester	M15 5JF	GM787703	Premier Inn Hotels Limited
Enfield Premier Inn	Innova Park, Enfield	EN3 7XU	AGL112423	Whitbread Group Plc
London Harrow Premier Inn	Kenton Road, Kenton	HA3 8AT	NGL811422	Whitbread Group Plc
Dover East Premier Inn	Travel Inn, Guston, Dover	CT15 5FA	K646324	Whitbread Group Plc

## Part B – PFP Mortgaged Property

Site name	Address	Post code	Title number	Proprietor
Rotherham Premier Inn	Brecks Hotel, East Bawtry Road, Wickerley	S65 3JB	SYK298959	Farringdon Scottish Partnership
Chessington Premier Inn			TGL23552	Farringdon Scottish Partnership
Bangor Premier Inn	Land lying to the north west of Pen Rhos Road, Capel-y-Graig, Bangor	LL57 4FA	WA905767	Farringdon Scottish Partnership
Sittingbourne Premier Inn	Land lying to the east of Sheppey Way, Bobbing	ME9 8RZ	K804354	Farringdon Scottish Partnership
Crewe Premier Inn	Marshfield Bank Farm, Coppenhall Lane, Crewe	CW2 8SD	CH391968	Farringdon Scottish Partnership
Horsham Premier Inn	The Station Hotel, North Street, Horsham	RH12 1RB	WSX165916	Farringdon Scottish Partnership
Gloucester (Longford) Premier Inn	Longford Inn, Tewkesbury Road, Longford	GL2 9BE	GR165159	Farringdon Scottish Partnership
Wirral (Heswall) Premier Inn	Glegg Arms, Gayton	CH60 3SD	MS310796	Farringdon Scottish Partnership
Bradford South Premier Land and buildings on the north side of Whitehall Road, Cleckheaton		BD19 6HG	WYK574015	Farringdon Scottish Partnership
Tring Premier Inn Crows Nest, Tring Hill		HP23 4LD	BM153847	Farringdon Scottish Partnership
Dover West Premier Inn  The Plough, Hougham  Without and land adjoining, Dover		CT15 7AB	K88623	Farringdon Scottish Partnership
Epsom South Premier Inn	Heathside and Epsom South Premier Lodge, Brighton Road, Tadworth	KT20 6BW	SY297819 SY104443	Farringdon Scottish Partnership
			SY122595	

Site name	Address	Post code	Title number	Proprietor
Runcorn Premier Inn	uncorn Premier Inn  Land on the north west side of Chester Road, Runcorn		CH383424	Farringdon Scottish Partnership
Bromsgrove Central Premier Inn	Premier Travel Inn, Birmingham Road, Bromsgrove	B61 0BA	WR61579	Farringdon Scottish Partnership
Dudley (Kingswinford) Premier Inn	The Kingswinford, Dudley Road, Kingswinford	DY6 8WT	WM668672	Farringdon Scottish Partnership
Dunstable South Premier Inn	Horse and Jockey Restaurant, Watling Street Dunstable	LU6 3QP	BD61340	Farringdon Scottish Partnership
Basildon (East Mayne) Premier Inn	Land on the east side of East Mayne, Basildon	SS13 1BW	EX849948	Farringdon Scottish Partnership
Southampton North Premier Inn	The Balmoral Inn Public House, Romsey Road, Nursling	SO16 0XJ	HP413814	Farringdon Scottish Partnership
Bridgend Premier Inn	Pantruthin Fach Farm, Pencoed, Bridgend	CF35 5HY	WA739310	Farringdon Scottish Partnership
Gatwick/Crawley South Premier Inn Goffs Park Hotel and 47 Goffs Park Road, Crawley		RH11 8AX	WSX84982	Farringdon Scottish Partnership
Knutsford (Bucklow Hill ) Premier Inn	The Swan, Chester Road, Bucklow Hill, Knutsford	WA16 6RD	CH458514	Farringdon Scottish Partnership
Dover East Pub Restaurant	Land lying to the north west of Jubilee Way at the junction of the A2 and A258 Guston Wood, Dover	CT15 5FD	K676885	Farringdon Scottish Partnership
Manchester Airport (Heald Green) Premier Inn	The Heald Green, Finney Lane, Heald Green, Cheadle	SK8 2QH	GM606629	Farringdon Scottish Partnership
Manchester Altrincham Premier Inn	George and Dragon, Manchester Road, Altrincham	WA14 4PH	GM852670	Farringdon Scottish Partnership

Site name	Address	Post code	Title number	Proprietor
Blackpool (Bispham) Premier Inn			LA655110	Farringdon Scottish Partnership
Redditch Premier Inn	The Foxlydiate, Birchfield Road, Redditch	B97 6PX	WR49977	Farringdon Scottish Partnership
Leicester (Forest East) Premier Inn	Forest Park, Hinckley Road, Leicester Forest East	LE3 3GD	LT110788	Farringdon Scottish Partnership
London Kew Premier Inn	Land on the north west side of Ferry Lane, Brentford	TW8 0BB	AGL109132 AGL96036	Farringdon Scottish Partnership
Manchester City Centre (GMEX) Premier Inn	Land and buildings on the south west side of Bale Street, Manchester	M2 3DW	LA5221 GM490437 GM690742	Farringdon Scottish Partnership
Slough Premier Inn	76 Uxbridge Road, Slough	SL1 1SU	BK323662	Farringdon Scottish Partnership
Leeds City West Premier Inn	Premier Lodge, City West One Office Park, Gelderd Road, Leeds	LS12 6LX	WYK658286	Farringdon Scottish Partnership
Peterborough (A1M, J16) Premier Inn	Posthouse Peterborough, London Road, Norman Cross, Peterborough	PE7 3TB	CB121803 CB180813 CB163436	Farringdon Scottish Partnership
Warrington East Premier Inn	Warrington Central Premier Lodge, Manchester Road, Woolston, Warrington	WA1 4GB	CH375529 CH512208	Farringdon Scottish Partnership
Gatwick/Crawley East Premier Inn	Land on the east side of Crawley Avenue, Gossops Green, Crawley	RH10 8BA	WSX231846	Farringdon Scottish Partnership

Site name	Address	Post code	Title number	Proprietor
Maidstone (Allington) Premier Inn	Sir Thomas Wyatt Public House, London Road, Allington	ME16 0HG	K717300	Farringdon Scottish Partnership

# Schedule 2 Forms of Letter for Occupational Tenants

#### Part 1

#### NOTICE TO OCCUPATIONAL TENANT

[On the letterhead of the Chargor]

[Date]
Dear Sirs,
Re: [Property]
Legal Charge dated [•] between [Chargor] and Whitbread Pension Trustees as trustee of the Whitbread Group Pension Fund (the "Legal Charge")
We refer to the lease dated [●] and made between [●] and [●] (the "Lease").
This letter constitutes notice to you that under the Legal Charge we have assigned by way of security to Whitbread Pension Trustees as trustee of the Whitbread Group Pension Fund (the " <b>Trustee</b> ") all our rights under the Lease.
We irrevocably instruct and authorise you to continue to pay any rent payable by you under the Lease to our account at [•], Account No. [•], Sort Code [•] (the "Rent Account").
The instructions in this letter apply until you receive notice from the Trustee to the contrary and

Trustee.

This letter is governed by English law.

notwithstanding any previous instructions given by us.

[Occupational tenant]

To:

Please confirm your agreement to the above by signing the attached acknowledgement and returning it to the Trustee at [•] with a copy to ourselves.

The instructions in this letter may not be revoked or amended without the prior written consent of the

Yours faithfully,

For [CHARGOR]

### Part 2

### **ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF OCCUPATIONAL TENANT**

То:		Whitbread Pension Trustees (as trustee of the Whitbread Group Pension Fund)  [●]	
Attentio	on:	[•]	[Date]
Dear S	Sirs,		
Re:	[Prope	ty]	
_	_	dated [•] between [ <i>Chargor</i> ] and Whitbread Pension Trustoup Pension Fund	ees as trustee of the
		eipt from [ <i>Whitbread Group plc</i> ] (the " <b>Chargor</b> ") of a notice date ease (as defined in the Notice).	ed [●] (the " <b>Notice</b> ") in
We acc	cept the i	nstructions contained in the Notice.	
We cor	nfirm that	we:	
(a)	have not received any notice that any third party has or will have any right or interest in, or hat made or will be making any claim or demand or taking any action in respect of, the rights of the Chargor under or in respect of the Lease (as defined in the Notice); and		
(b)	•	y all rent and all other monies payable by us under the Lease into in the Notice); and	o the Rent Account (as
(c)		ontinue to pay those monies into the Rent Account until we cons to the contrary.	receive your written
This let	ter is gov	rerned by English law.	
Yours fa	aithfully,		
For		1	
L			

# Schedule 3 Property Criteria

At the Substitution Date the Qualifying Property must:

- (a) be situated in England or Wales;
- (b) be the subject of a Valuation from the Valuer dated not more than two months prior to the Substitution Date setting out the Market Value of the relevant Qualifying Property, such Valuation to be in a form acceptable to the Trustee (acting reasonably);
- (c) be the subject of a Certificate of Title from a solicitor dated not more than seven Business Days before the Substitution Date evidencing title to the relevant Qualifying Property that is acceptable to the Trustee (acting reasonably); and
- (d) in the case of leasehold property, not require the landlord's consent to charging, assignment or underletting.

# Schedule 4 Form of Substitution Request Notice

To:	Whitbre

Whitbread Pension Trustees

(as trustee of the Whitbread Group Pension Fund)

[@]

Attention:

[0]

From:

[Chargor or Group]

[date of notice]

Re: Legal Charge dated [•] between [Chargor] and Whitbread Pension Trustees as trustee of the Whitbread Group Pension Fund (the "Legal Charge")

### **Substitution Request Notice**

- 1. We refer to the Legal Charge. Unless otherwise defined in this notice, terms defined in the Legal Charge shall have the same meaning when used in this notice.
- 2. This is a Substitution Request Notice.
- 3. The Substitution Date is [●].
- 4. The Substitution Valuation Date is [\*].
- 5. The Substituted Property is specified below, together with its Market Value as at the Substitution Valuation Date:

Description of Substituted Property	Market Value
1.	
2.	
Total Market Value of Substituted Property:	

6.	The Substitution Property is specified below, together with its Market Value as at the
	Substitution Valuation Date:

	Description of Substitution Property	Market Value
1.		
2.		
	Total Market Value of Substitution Property:	

Signed for and on behalf of [Chargor or Group]

# Schedule 5 Form of Release Request Notice

-	_
	ω.

Whitbread Pension Trustees

(as trustee of the Whitbread Group Pension Fund)

**[**@]

Attention:

•

From:

[Chargor or Group]

[date of notice]

Re: Legal Charge dated [\*] between [Chargor] and Whitbread Pension Trustees as trustee of the Whitbread Group Pension Fund (the "Legal Charge")

#### **Release Request Notice**

- 1. We refer to the Legal Charge. Unless otherwise defined in this notice, terms defined in the Legal Charge shall have the same meaning when used in this notice.
- 2. This is a Release Request Notice.
- 3. The proposed Release Date is [.].
- 4. The Required Secured Amount is £[●] (as at the Release Date).
- 5. The Secured Excess is £[•] (as at the Release Date).
- 6. The Market Value of the Security Assets (as a whole) as set out in the Release Valuation is £[•] (as at the Release Date).
- 7. The proposed Release Property is specified below, together with its Market Value (as at the Release Date):

Description of proposed Release Property	Market Value
1.	
2.	
Total Market Value of the proposed Release Property:	

8. We confirm that the Market Value of the proposed Release Property is no greater than the amount of Secured Excess (in both cases as at the Release Date and as set out in the Release Valuation).

Signed for and on behalf of [Chargor or Group]

# Schedule 6 Form of Top-Up Request Notice

To:

Whitbread Group PLC (as Group)

[Each of the Chargors]

Attention:

[**•**]

From:

Whitbread Pension Trustees (as trustee of the Whitbread Group Pension Fund)

[date of notice]

Re: Legal Charge dated [•] between [Chargor] and Whitbread Pension Trustees as trustee of the Whitbread Group Pension Fund (the "Legal Charge")

#### **Top-Up Request Notice**

- We refer to the Legal Charge and the Valuation Review carried out in accordance with Clause 4.8(B) dated the Valuation Review Date specified below. Unless otherwise defined in this notice, terms defined in the Legal Charge shall have the same meaning when used in this notice.
- 2. This is a Top-Up Request Notice.
- 3. The Valuation Review Date is [s].
- 4. The Required Secured Amount as at the Release Valuation Date is [•].
- 5. The Market Value of the Security Assets as a whole as at the Valuation Review Date is [•].
- 6. The Security Deficit as at the Valuation Review Date is [●]. We confirm that the Security Deficit is greater than £1,000,000.
- 7. We confirm that the amounts specified in Clause 20(B)(i) to (iii) have been prepared using the most recent Valuation Review.
- 8. We hereby request that you charge such amount of Qualifying Property in order that the Security Deficit is reduced to zero. We acknowledge that you shall have complete discretion in satisfying this request and we shall not be concerned to enquire which Chargor(s) satisfies this request or which Qualifying Property is charged.

Signed for and on behalf of
Whitbread Pensions Trustee

# Schedule 7 Form of Supplemental Deed of Charge

THIS SUPPLEMENTAL CHARGE is entered into as a deed and dated [Date]

#### **BETWEEN**

- 1. [●] whose registered office is at [●] (registered in England No. [●]) ([together], the "Chargor[s]");
- WHITBREAD GROUP PLC whose registered office is at Whitbread Court, Houghton Hall Business Park, Porz Avenue, Dunstable, Bedfordshire LU5 5XE (registered in England No. 29423) ("Group"); and
- 3. **WHITBREAD PENSION TRUSTEES** whose registered office is at Whitbread Court, Houghton Hall Business Park, Porz Avenue, Dunstable, Bedfordshire LU5 5XE (registered in England No. 629992) as trustee of the Whitbread Group Pension Fund (the "**Trustee**").

#### **WHEREAS**

- (A) Group is the Principal Employer under the Fund and Trustee is the sole trustee of the Fund.
- (B) The Chargors, Group and the Trustee, amongst others, have entered into the Legal Charge in order to provide security for Group's commitments to the Fund on the terms set out in the Legal Charge.
- (C) [On 25 February 2010,] the Trustee acquired an interest in Moorgate Scottish Limited Partnership, which is a partner in Farringdon Scottish Partnership. The relationship between the parties in respect of these partnerships is governed by, *inter alia*, the PFP Transaction Documents (as defined in the Legal Charge).
- (D) [Each of] the Chargor[s] enter into this Deed pursuant to Clause 18 of the Legal Charge in order to charge the Additional Property and the Additional Chattels in favour of the Trustee.
- (E) The Additional Property is "Qualifying Property" as defined in the Legal Charge.

#### THIS DEED WITNESSES as follows:

#### 1. INTERPRETATION

#### 1.1 Definitions

In this deed:

"Additional Chattels" means the Chattels (if any) relating to the Additional Property.

"Additional Property" means all freehold or leasehold property described in Schedule 1 and every part of it including:

- (i) all buildings and Fixtures on that property; and
- (ii) the benefit of any covenants for title given or entered into by any predecessor in title of the Chargor in respect of that property or any moneys paid or payable in respect of those covenants.

"Legal Charge"

means the Legal Charge dated [ ] made between (1) Premier Inn Hotels Limited, Farringdon Scottish Partnership, Premier Inn Limited, Whitbread Restaurants Limited and, Whitbread Group Plc (each as Chargors), (2) Whitbread Group Plc (as Group) and (3) Whitbread Pension Trustees (as Trustee of the Whitbread Group Pension Fund).

#### 1.2 Security Document

This Deed is supplemental to the Legal Charge.

#### 1.3 Incorporation of provisions

The provisions of the Legal Charge shall apply to and be deemed to be incorporated in this Deed as if set out herein in full, mutatis mutandis, except that references to:

- (A) the "Deed" shall be construed as references to this Deed;
- (B) the "Mortgaged Property" shall be construed as including the Additional Property as defined in Clause 1.1; and
- (C) the "Chattels" shall be construed as including the Additional Chattels as defined in Clause 1.1.

#### 1.4 Construction

(A) In this Deed, unless otherwise specified, words or expressions defined in the Legal Charge but not otherwise defined in this Deed shall have the same meanings when used in this Deed.

- (B) In this Deed unless the contrary intention appears, a reference to a "Clause", a "Paragraph", a "Subparagraph" or a "Schedule" is a reference to a clause, paragraph or subparagraph of, or a schedule to, this Deed.
- (C) Unless expressly provided to the contrary in this Deed, a person who is not a party to this Deed may not enforce any of its terms under the Contracts (Rights of Third Parties) Act 1999 and, notwithstanding any term of this Deed, no consent of any third party is required for any variation (including any release or compromise of any liability) or termination of this Deed.
- (D) The headings in this Deed do not affect its interpretation.
- (E) Any covenant of the Chargors under this Deed (other than a payment obligation) remains in force during the Security Period.
- (F) Unless the context otherwise requires, a reference to a Security Asset includes the proceeds of sale of that Security Asset.
- (G) Where the Trustee has transferred its SLP Interest to a Successor Trustee or Trustee Related Trustee, any reference to the Trustee shall be a reference to a Successor Trustee or Trustee Related Transferee (as applicable)

#### 2. CREATION OF SECURITY

#### 2.1 General

All the security created under this Deed:

- (A) is created in favour of the Trustee as trustee for the Fund;
- (B) is security for the payment of all the Secured Liabilities; and
- (C) is made with full title guarantee in accordance with the Law of Property (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1994.

#### 2.2 Land

The Chargor charges by way of first legal mortgage all its estate or interest in the Additional Property.

#### 2.3 Chattels

- (A) The Chargor charges, by way of fixed charge, all the Additional Chattels.
- (B) The Chargor charges by way of a first floating charge, all the Additional Chattels at any time not effectively charged pursuant to Clause 2.3(A).

#### 2.4 Insurance

The Chargor assigns absolutely, to the extent they are assignable and subject to a proviso for re-assignment on redemption, all its rights in respect of any insurance policies now or hereafter effected in respect of the Additional Property or the Additional Chattels.

#### 3. REPRESENTATIONS

The representations set out in Clause 3 of the Legal Charge are made by [each of] the Chargor[s] to the Trustee on the date of this Deed in respect of this Deed, the Additional Property and the Additional Chattels as if the Additional Property and Additional Chattels were comprised in the applicable Mortgaged Property and the Chattels originally referred to in that Clause 3.

#### 4. COVENANTS

- 4.1 [Each of] the Chargor[s] agrees to be bound by the covenants and provisions of the Legal Charge as if the Additional Property and the Additional Chattels were comprised in the applicable Mortgaged Property and the Chattels originally therein defined.
- 4.2 [Each of] the Chargor[s] covenants that the Additional Property is a Qualifying Property as defined in the Legal Charge.

#### 5. GOVERNING LAW

This Deed, and any obligations arising out of or in connection with it (whether contractual or non-contractual) shall be governed by and construed in accordance with English law.

**IN WITNESS WHEREOF** the parties have executed this document as a deed and intend this deed to be delivered on the date first before written.

### SIGNATORIES TO LEGAL CHARGE

### GROUP (executing in its capacity as Group and as a Chargor)

Executed as a deed by ) WHITBREAD GROUP ) PLC ) acting by a director in ) the presence of: )	Director
Witness's signature:	
Name (print):	MATTHEW YATES
Occupation:	GENERAL COUNSEL PLAK
Address:	WHITERFAID COURT
	DUNSTABLE
<u>CHARGORS</u>	
Executed as a deed by ) PREMIER INN ) LIMITED ) acting by a director in ) the presence of: )	Director
Witness's signature:	
Name (print):	MATTHEN YATES
Occupation:	GENERAL COUNSEL PLER
Address:	WHITEREAD COURT DUNSTABLE

Executed as a deed by ) PREMIER INN ) HOTELS LIMITED ) acting by a director in ) the presence of: )	Director
Witness's signature:	
Name (print):	MATTHEW YATES
Occupation:	GENERAL COUNSEL PIRK
Address:	WHITEREAD COURT
	DUNISTABLE
Executed as a deed by ) WHITBREAD ) RESTAURANTS ) LIMITED ) acting by a director in ) the presence of: )	Show Thus Director
Witness's signature:	
Name (print):	MATTHEW YATES
Occupation:	GENERAL COUNSEL PLAR
Address:	NMMARKAD COURT DUNITABLE

.

Executed as a deed by FARRINGDON SCOTTIS acting by its partner MILTON (SC) 2 LIMITED acting by a director in the presence of:	) Co
Witness's signature:	
Name (print):	JEWAIFERWATSES
Occupation:	PA TO GENERAL COURSEL.
Address:	WHITISREAD COURT
	PORZ AUENLE, DIFSTABLE, BEDS
TRUSTEE	
Executed as a deed by ) WHITBREAD ) PENSION TRUSTEES ) acting by two directors )	Director
or director and )	Director/Secretary

·

Executed as a deed by  FARRINGDON SCOTTISH PA  acting by its partner  MILTON (SC) 2 LIMITED  acting by a director in the presence of:	) ARTNERSHIP ) ) ) ) ) ) Director
Witness's signature:	
Name (print):	
Occupation:	······································
Address:	
TRUSTEE	
Executed as a deed by ) WHITBREAD ) PENSION TRUSTEES ) acting by two directors ) or director and ) secretary )	K. Jones KEITH Jowes  Director  Director/Secretary

Executed as a deed by FARRINGDON SCOTTIS acting by its partner MILTON (SC) 2 LIMITED acting by a director in the presence of:	)
Witness's signature:	
villiooo o olgi lataro.	
Name (print):	
Occupation:	
Address:	
TRUSTEE	
Executed as a deed by ) WHITBREAD ) PENSION TRUSTEES )	Director
acting by two directors ) or director and ) secretary	Director/Secretary
SCLICIO I	1.76号63.377.6号63.37.3